
 

 

 

 

 

May 6, 2019 

 

 

Robin Pierce, Community Development Director 

Village of Essex Junction 

2 Lincoln Street 

Essex Junction, VT 05452 

 

 

RE: 9 & 11 Park Street - Conceptual Site Plan Review 

 

 

Dear Robin: 

 

We are writing on behalf of 11 Park Street, LLC to request a Conceptual Plan approval involving the 

redevelopment of the above referenced property.   

 

Project Description  

The project involves the removal of the existing buildings on the site and the construction of a four-story 

mixed-use building fronting on Park Street with an attached parking deck behind it.  The building will 

have 9,000± sq. ft. of commercial space on the ground floor and 50 studio apartments on the upper 

floors. 

 

Lighting 

New post-mounted street lights are shown on the proposed site plan.  The luminaires and posts will be 

similar to those used at 4 Pearl Street.  We will prepare a lighting plan in accordance with Section 704 of 

the Village Land Development Code and will submit detailed lighting calculations and fixture catalog cut 

sheets at Final Site Plan Review. 

 

Landscaping 

A conceptual landscaping plan is also shown on the proposed site plan.  Proposed landscaping includes 

street trees along Park Street and Park Terrace, and trees, shrubs and flowers within the parking lot 

islands.  A detailed landscaping plan with cost estimate will be prepared plan in accordance with Section 

719 of the Village Land Development Code and submitted at Final Site Plan Review. 

 

Site Access 

This parcel currently has three curb cuts, two on Park Street and another on Park Terrace.  This Project 

includes eliminating the two on Park Street, and reconfiguring the one on Park Terrace to be a 24’ wide 

two-way curb cut with 5’ radii curbs.  As shown on the proposed site plan, the reconfigured Park Terrace 

curb cut will be the only remaining ingress and egress for the project site.  It will also provide access to 

the rear parcel.  

  



Robin Pierce 

May 6, 2019 

Page 2 

 

 

 

Traffic Generation  

The 10th Edition of the ITE Trip Generation Manual was used to estimate the peak hour weekday trip 

generation from the proposed uses.  The resulting estimates are shown in the following table. 

 

LAND-USE DESCRIPTION 

ITE 

L.U.C. 

  -- AM PEAK HOUR -- -- PM PEAK HOUR -- 

SIZE UNITS ENTER EXIT TOTAL ENTER EXIT TOTAL 

MULTI-FAMILY HOUSING (MID-RISE)* 221 50 UNITS 1 9 10 6 3 9 

GENERAL OFFICE BUILDING 710 3,000 SQ. FT. 3 0 3 1 3 4 

APPAREL STORE 876 3,000 SQ. FT. 2 1 3 6 6 12 

COPY, PRINT, AND EXPRESS SHIP STORE 920 1,000 SQ. FT. 2 1 3 3 4 7 

FAST CASUAL RESTAURANT 930 2,000 SQ. FT. 3 1 4 15 13 28 

TOTALS 11 12 23 31 29 60 

* Dense Mixed-Use Urban VTE/HOUR VTE/HOUR 

 

 

Water and Wastewater Flows 

Water and wastewater design flows for this Project were estimated based on the 2019 Vermont 

Wastewater System and Potable Water Supply Rules.  The following summarizes the anticipated design 

flows: 

 

 Water Design Flows 

  50 studio (1 bedroom) apartments  7,000 gpd (50 apt. x 2 residents/apt. x 70 gpd/person) 

  2,000 sf restaurant (16 seats) 522 gpd (16 seats x 27 gpd/seat + 6 employees x 

     15 gpd/person)  

  7,000 sf commercial space       300 gpd (20 employees x 15 gpd/person) 

   Total 7,822 gpd 

  

 Wastewater Design Flows 

  50 studio apartments 7,000 gpd (50 apt. x 2 residents/apt. x 70 gpd/person) 

  2,000 sf restaurant (16 seats) 522 gpd (16 seats x 27 gpd/seat + 6 employees x 

     15 gpd/person)  

  7,000 sf commercial space    300 gpd (20 employees x 15 gpd/person) 

   Total 7,822 gpd 

 

Stormwater 

There is no existing stormwater system for this largely impervious site, as the stormwater sheets across 

the existing gravel drives and onto the adjacent streets.  This Project will increase the impervious area 

from approximately 71% to approximately 94%.  For stormwater permitting purposes, this Project and 

the Handy’s Hotels & Rentals, LLC project will be considered parts of a common development.  As such, 

the stormwater runoff from the Handy development will be collected and treated through the proposed 

new system on this project.  our office conducted soil borings and infiltration tests at the site on May 1, 

2017.  Based on those tests, we anticipate that subsurface infiltration will be implemented with the new 

stormwater design.  The Conceptual Plan includes the basics of the proposed new stormwater system 

improvements, but subsequent design drawings will develop the details of the stormwater 
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improvements proposed.   

 

State Permits 

The Project will require a Stormwater Discharge permit, an amendment to the existing Wastewater 

System and Potable Water Supply permit, and a Potable Water System Permit to Construct (for the 

proposed water main and fire hydrant relocation).  It will also require a Construction General Permit for 

erosion prevention and sediment control during construction. 

 

Application Documents 

As required by the Development Application, we have enclosed the following for your review: 

 Two (2) full size copies of plans; 

 One (1) PDF copy of the plans; 

 One copy each of the completed Development Application & the Conceptual Plan Checklist. 

 

Please feel free to call our office with any questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Doug Henson L.S. 

 

c: Brett Grabowski, Milot Real Estate 
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